Northern New Mexico Citizens' Advisory Board Meeting 1 2 March 16, 2022 3 1:00 p.m. to 5:00 p.m. 4 **Hybrid Meeting** 5 6 **Minutes** 7 8 **Meeting Attendees** 9 10 **Department of Energy** 1. Michael Mikolanis, Manager, Environmental Management Los Alamos 11 12 2. Lee Bishop, Deputy Designated Federal Officer, Environmental Management Los Alamos 13 3. John Evans, Environmental Management Los Alamos 14 4. Cheryl Rodriguez, Environmental Management Los Alamos 15 5. Miquela Vargas, Environmental Management Los Alamos 6. David Nickless, Environmental Management Los Alamos 16 17 7. Lee Ocker, Environmental Management Los Alamos 18 8. Allison Majure, Environmental Management Los Alamos 19 9. Rose Brown, Environmental Management Los Alamos 20 **NNMCAB Members** 21 22 1. Cherylin Atcitty, Chair 23 2. Elena Fernandez, Vice-Chair 24 3. Ubaldo Gallegos 4. Sterling Grogan 25 26 5. Angelica Gurulé 27 6. Mark Hayden 28 7. Robert Hull 29 8. Roger Life 9. Patricio Pacheco 30 31 **NNMCAB Absences** 32 33 1. Beverly Martin 34 2. David Neal 35 3. Stanley Riveles 36 4. Jenelle Roybal 37 5. Miguel Vigil 38 39 **NNMCAB Staff** 40 1. Menice Santistevan, Executive Director 41 2. Bridget Maestas, Executive Assistant

1		
1 2	Guests	
3	1.	Rodney Roberson, Environmental Management Los Alamos
4	2.	Michelle Sais, Environmental Management Los Alamos
5	3.	Gerald O'Leary, N3B
6	4.	Troy Thomson, N3B
7	5.	Randal Roberts, Tetra Tech
8	6.	Stephanie Gallagher, Environmental Management Los Alamos
9	7.	James Murphy, Public
10	8.	Kathryn Keenan, N3B
11	9.	John Gonsky, Tetra Tech
12	10.	Kelsey Shank, theEDGE
13	11.	Thomas McCrory, Environmental Management Los Alamos
14	12.	Dave Kostorowski, Tech2 Solutions
15	13.	Erich Evered, N3B
16	14.	Anne Laurent, Los Alamos County
17	15.	Matt Miller, US Representative Teresa Leger Fernandez Office
18	16.	Angela Edwards, Los Alamos National Laboratory
19	17.	Kathy Walker, N3B
20	18.	Sarah Chandler, Environmental Management Los Alamos
21	19.	Scott Kovac, Nuclear Watch New Mexico
22	20.	Kristin Henderson, N3B
23	21.	Michael Erickson, N3B
24		Rick Shean, New Mexico Environment Department
25		David Abelson, N3B
26		Neelam Dhawan, New Mexico Environment Department
27		Eric Chavez, US Senator Ben Ray Lujan's Office
28		Dino Chavarria, Santa Clara Environment Director
29		Levi Dean, New Mexico Environment Department
30		Felicia Aguilar, N3B
31		Wayne Barber, Exchange/Monitor Publications
32		Gail Mattson, N3B
33		Joe Ritchey, Environmental Management Los Alamos
34		Jeff Holland, N3B
35		Emily Day, N3B
36	34.	jh

*The written minutes are intended as a synopsis of the meeting.

37

Minutes 1 2 ı. Call to Order 3 The meeting of the Northern New Mexico Citizens' Advisory Board (NNMCAB) was held on 4 March 16, 2022, in a hybrid format. Mr. Lee Bishop, Deputy Designated Federal Officer 5 (DDFO) stated that on behalf of the Department of Energy (DOE) the meeting of the NNMCAB was called to order at 1:02 p.m. 6 7 Mr. Bishop recognized Ms. Cherylin Atcitty, the NNMCAB Chair. Ms. Atcitty presided at the 8 meeting. 9 The meeting of the NNMCAB was open to the public and posted in The Federal Register in 10 accordance with the Federal Advisory Committee Act. 11 12 II. Welcome and Introductions 13 Mr. Bishop welcomed everyone to the meeting and turned the meeting over to Ms. Atcitty. 14 Ms. Atcitty welcomed everyone to the March Board Meeting. Ms. Atcitty asked Ms. Santistevan to conduct roll call for members and guests. 15 16 III. Establishment of a Quorum (Roll Call) 17 Ms. Menice Santistevan conducted roll call for board members and guests on WebEx. At the 18 19 call to order, 6 NNMCAB members were present or online. Ms. Santistevan stated that the 20 meeting was being recorded to produce the minutes of the meeting. 21 IV. **Approval of Agenda** 22 23 The board reviewed the agenda for the March 16, 2022, meeting. Ms. Atcitty opened the 24 floor to entertain a motion to approve the agenda. 25 Mr. Mark Hayden made a motion to approve the agenda; Ubaldo Gallegos seconded the 26 motion. The motion to approve the agenda passed. 27 ٧. **Approval of Minutes** 28 29 The board reviewed the minutes from the January 19, 2022, Board Meeting. Ms. Atcitty opened the floor to entertain a motion. 30 31 Ms. Angelica Gurulé made a motion to approve the minutes as presented; Mr. Mark Hayden 32 seconded the motion. Ms. Atcitty opened the floor for discussion. 33 With no discussion, the motion to approve the minutes as presented passed. 34 35 VI. **Old Business** a. Update from Chair/Vice-Chair, and Committee Chairs 36 37 Ms. Atcitty – No update. 38 Ms. Fernandez – the Outreach Committee met last month during the committee 39 meeting and due to member status, she was serving as Interim Chair and Mr. Miguel

Vigil was serving as the Interim Vice-Chair. The Outreach Committee has not yet met for formal elections.

Mr. Hull – at the last Combined Committee Meetings, members broke out into breakout sessions to work on the Committee Work Plans. The Risk Committee consisted of Mr. Hull and Mr. Grogan and they updated the Work Plan with no significant changes. They did include: a statement about the bi-monthly status report, in Section 6 they changed the list of Corrective Measures Evaluations (CME) and aligned it with the Consent Order Committee, 10 active campaigns, CME for Material Disposal Areas (MDA), update for the Los Alamos Town Site issues, level 101 training for risk analyses, participation in April 2022 EM Site Tour, understanding where LANL Legacy Waste has been sent within and outside the State, added shipments to the Waste Isolation Pilot Plant (WIPP) Site, and corrected dates in the previous Work Plan. Mr. Hull, Ms. Fernandez, and Mr. Grogan attended the Technical Working Group (TWG) Meetings, the first was on detection limits for environmental data. The second TWG meeting was on the Chromium Interim Measures and the presentation was given by Danny Katzman. Additional Old Business, the NNMCAB still has not heard anything from Headquarters on approval of the NNMCAB Bylaws.

Mr. Hayden – Draft of the Work Plan was substantially updated last year, and he only needs to put the final touches on it. Some items discussed were, onboarding for new members, a tour of Los Alamos National Laboratory (LANL), and expansion of the membership.

b. Report on Waste Management Symposia

Ms. Atcitty attended the Waste Management Symposia March 7-9, 2022 and was the first time she has attended. She noted that it was very informative and there were many sessions concurrently that she would have liked to attend. She chose the session for the update on the Tuba City, Arizona, Disposal Site. She was able to meet with Mr. Mark Bollinger from the Carlsbad Field Office, and he stated that he would be interested in conducting a site tour for NNMCAB Members in the near future. There was a great representation from Los Alamos for the EM efforts with the Justice40 Initiative. Some of the other topics covered were the post-pandemic impacts where they found that some employees were more productive working at home and many of the offices are trying to make that transition, also with the pandemic, working with the contractors and agencies, there is always a varying level of safety protocols they have to adhere to. She noted that one of the highlights was the Los Alamos Legacy Cleanup Program and it was an overview of all the cleanup activities with Triad, N3B, and DOE EM.

VII. New Business

Mr. Bishop stated that Headquarters was taking a poll on the EM SSAB Chairs Meeting attendance if they were to hold the meeting in person in May. He noted that we would send the Chair, Vice-Chair, and one to two other members. He asked for members to let the staff know if they would like to continue to attend virtually or in person.

Membership – He and Ms. Santistevan spoke with Ms. Kelly Snyder on membership packages. Ms. Santistevan stated that the NNMCAB Membership Package was still sitting with the White House Liaison Office. She noted that Ms. Snyder had stated that as things

were happening around the world it has taken much energy and the packet had not moved from that office.

Mr. Bishop stated that the next meeting would be a Combined Committee Meeting in April and the topic would be a primer on radiological terms and the committees would work on their Work Plans. He noted that the tour of LANL would not be in April. Mr. Bishop stated that the next Board Meeting would be in May and in June the plan is to have the LANL Tour.

Mr. Bishop stated that all the staff was back in the office, Federal and Contractor Staff. He noted that Los Alamos County was in the medium level of transmission, so they were able to remove the mask mandate in the office.

Mr. Bishop stated that this was Ms. Angelica Gurulé's last meeting. She has been an outstanding member and he noted that a certificate of appreciation would be sent to her.

Mr. Hull stated that the Executive Committee met with Ike White, EM-1 in February. He noted that in the meeting they discussed membership and the areas around here that might have an interest in the cleanup but have not had the opportunity to participate with the NNMCAB. Mr. Hull state that Mr. Mikolanis and Mr. White both agreed that in their experience in other locations, the state would participate. Mr. Hull noted that there are 21 or 23 Tribal Groups that exist within a 50-mile radius of Los Alamos. Mr. Hull stated that he made a suggested recommendation that the Outreach Committee should convene and come up with an established approach to reach out to additional members beyond our current area. Mr. Hull also stated that the NNMCAB would also have to address the Bylaws to address this aspect of expanded membership.

Mr. Bishop stated that he spoke with Ms. Snyder and she agreed with re-defining the boundaries. Ms. Snyder would prefer that the membership should stay within the directly impacted communities. Mr. Bishop also stated that the Outreach Committee should come up with a proposal to modify the Bylaws.

Ms. Gurulé stated that in the Work Plan discussions at the committee meeting, they discussed membership and possibly making a recommendation to have official appointees, and public positions, making sure that the communities are represented on the Board. She noted that they discussed keeping membership along the WIPP corridor, the communities that are directly impacted by LANL operations, including the tribes around Los Alamos and along the way to Carlsbad.

Ms. Santistevan stated that Ms. Snyder advised them that they could possibly look at having liaison members for possibly Pueblos or other organizations that might want to nominate someone. She noted that they do not have to go through the formal approval process. Ms. Santistevan stated that in terms of the Bylaws, Headquarters is working on the EM SSAB Charter and she prefers that the NNMCAB wait on the Charter and the new Policies and Procedures document to come out before amending the Bylaws to ensure that they are working in conjunction with those two documents.

VIII. EM-LA Field Office Update

Mr. Bishop gave the update for Mr. Mikolanis.

Waste Management – EM-LA was a highlighted site. EM-LA and N3B presented and gave aspects of the cleanup at Los Alamos. Attending were Ms. Kim Lebak (overview of the

cleanup), Mr. Troy Thomson (remediation, scope and progress being made), Mr. Joe Legare 1 2 (recruitment and retention), Mr. Joe Sena (overview of the water program), and Ms. Nicole 3 Nelson-Jean (Justice 40 Pilot Program). Also speaking were Mr. Mikolanis, the Lt. Governor of 4 San Ildefonso Pueblo, Mr. Raymond Martinez, and one of the field technicians that went 5 through the N3B Apprentice Program, Brooke Baker. 6 Recent Visits – Mr. Ike White, EM-1, visited Los Alamos and met with the NNMCAB 7 Executive Committee. Ms. Nicole Nelson-Jean, EM-3 met with the Santa Fe Indian 8 Superintendent and the STEM program members to talk about the Environmental Justice 40 9 effort. Chromium – Well R-71 was installed, and the first sample was taken. This milestone was 10 11 completed two weeks early. A couple of drilling Work Plans were submitted to get a couple of new wells approved (R-74 for RDX) and (R-73). Wells R-76 and R-77 Work Plans will be 12 13 submitted early. 14 Milestones – They have 19 milestones this fiscal year. They have completed four of them on 15 time or early. 16 Waste Management Operations – This calendar year they have completed twenty 17 shipments to WIPP and will have a couple more this week. DOE also just finished the Federal 18 Readiness Review for the Drill and Drain Project that will take drums that are non-compliant 19 and target liquids in there to make them compliant and certified to go to WIPP. In August 20 they are planning to retrieve the first corrugated metal pipe (CMP) to size reduce and ship to WIPP. 21 22 Middle DP Road – They found some soil contamination which caused them to step out and 23 take some more samples and collect more soils. The soil was contaminated with Cadmium, a 24 little bit of Lead and Copper. 25 Budget – President Biden signed the budget out along with the Ukrainian Support Bill. The 26 budget is indicating a plus up for EM-LA and still has to go through the process for approval. 27 DOE will be having discussions with NMED on what they will bring above the line on the 28 priority list. 29 Mr. Grogan asked for a response to the U.S. Government Accountability Office (GAO) Report 30 from DOE. This is in regards to the AP Article, "Waste Isolation Pilot Plant: Construction the 31 Need for DOE to Address Root Causes." 32 Mr. Bishop stated that he would have the EM-LA Public Affairs send an official response. 33 34 IX. **Update on Justice 40 Initiative** 35 Ms. Miquela Vargas, EM-LA, gave a presentation titled, "EM-LA Efforts Within the Justice40 Initiative" An electronic copy of the presentation may be obtained from the NNMCAB Staff 36 37 (menice.santistevan@em.doe.gov or bridget.maestas@em.doe.gov or by calling (505) 989-38 1662.

X. Update from N3B

39 40

41

42

Mr. Troy Thomson, Environmental Remediation Program Manager, N3B, gave the update for Mr. Joe Legare. He will concentrate on planned work going forward.

Waste

TRU Waste Program, there are two shipments coming up the next week which will bring them up to 22 shipments. They have 30 planned to ship for FY22. They will resume reskinning two of the domes in Area G where TRU waste is stored for safe and compliant storage for the waste containers.

Low Level Waste (LLW) Shipments – they have shipped over 130 cubic meters of CH TRU LLW inventory. They have a target of 400 cubic meters in FY22.

CMP Campaign — Wastewater that was treated by cementation into CMPs. They are continuing their efforts to be able to retrieve them from the underground storage locations. They need to complete the mock-ups and on the job training with their work crews. They are also doing operational testing of the hydraulic shear and performing mock-ups with it for cutting the CMPs to sizes that will fit into solid waste boxes for shipment to WIPP. They are also brining in new process lines in over time. One will be a glovebag processing line that will allow them to empty contents of TRU waste drums in a contained area so they can sort, segregate, and repackage those materials to meet WIPP's acceptance criteria for transportation. They will process about 1,500 containers of TRU waste for disposal at WIPP.

DOE has performed some reviews and assessments of the work N3B is doing in the glovebag processing line. Based on comments, N3B will revise their method and approaches, will continue to train and use the mock-ups as a training tool, then go into operation of those new processing lines.

Water

Chromium - They continue to operate the Chromium treatment system. It has been effective in controlling the migration of the plume on the southern and eastern boundaries. They are working with with NMED to move into final remedy. They are currently building a well pad in Mortandad Canyon for well R-73.

There are two drilling Work Plans that will be submitted to NMED within the next week to two weeks. They will be for R-77 for a new monitoring well for the Chromium Plume and R-76 which will be a replacement for well R-28.

Royal Demolition Explosives (RDX) Plume – They are continuing to monitor the plume. They just turned in a drilling work plan to NMED for a new monitoring well, R-74.

Land

Middle DP Road is progressing. They completed excavations and confirmation sampling in the last few months. Confirmation sampling was completed in January. They had a few areas that were above the residential screening levels for soil. They will go in and take more samples to make sure they know nature and extent. The final report will be submitted to NMED for review and approval after all the sampling and excavations are complete.

Aggregate Areas – In the next couple of months they will have sampling going on at Twomile Canyon in the Pajarito Watershed. They have completed some change control with their contract and are getting out in the field as quickly as they can. In the last month they have also sampled two Solid Waste Management Units (SWMU) out at Threemile Canyon. It was critical to get out in the field relatively quickly because they would not have access to it by the end of February due to the Spotted Owls nesting in that area.

XI. Update from New Mexico Environment Department

Mr. Rick Shean, Hazardous Waste Bureau (HWB) Chief, gave the update for NMED.

CO Milestones – 19 milestones were finalized for FY22. The R-73 drilling work plan was received, reviewed, and approved. The work plans for wells R-71 and R-72 were submitted on time. NMED has sent out draft comments on the Supplemental Investigation Reports for TA-49 in and outside the Nuclear Environmental Site Boundary and both of the reports are milestones for FY22 due in May 2022.

DP Middle Road – NMED received an update for the implementation of the work plan on February 25th and due to the expanded footprint of the contamination, they expect the final report to be submitted six months after they have completed the field work.

Other Groundwater Projects – NMED attended the pre-submittal meeting for the Facility Wide Groundwater Monitoring Plan on March 10th. Currently the HWB is working with an outside consultant and EPA to pull together a guidance document for the aquifer testing facility wide. NMED is going to be hosting a series of Technical Team Meetings with DOE to prepare for the FY22 Milestone Work Plan to adjust the Chromium Plume Control Interim Measures. They have received two Work Plans this month to install two monitoring wells for the Chromium Plume and one in the RDX Plume. NMED is also working with the State Engineers Office to make sure that the monitoring well R-25 is abandoned properly.

Other Consent Order Documents – NMED met with DOE to discuss the MDA L Interim Measures Soil Vapor Monitoring Report. NMED feels that the interim measure of the soil vapor extraction has been successful, and DOE will continue that process until a final remedy is selected and implemented. NMED has reviewed the Annual Progress Report for RDX CME and Deep Groundwater on February 23rd. They have approved the 2019 revised Work Plan for the Plug and Abandonment of the wells on February 8th.

Permit Related LANL Activities – NMED is still reviewing the permit renewal application and they are holding regular meetings with DOE to resolve the administrative incomplete comments they have made on it. There was a 60-day extension submitted to review the comments by DOE after discussions with NMED.

WIPP Update – The 10-year permit renewal is going, the application was submitted by DOE on March 31, 2020 and is under technical review at NMED. The Class 3 modifications for new panels 11 and 12 were submitted July 30, 2021and the 60-day comment period was completed October 4, 2021. On December 17, 2021 NMED requested that WIPP consolidate the Class 3 with the renewal application and the new deadline for that submittal is March 17, 2022. The goal is to review both permitting items in one permitting process going forward.

The Class 2 modification to update Panel 8 Volatile Organic Compound Room-Based Limits was submitted October 15, 2021. A public meeting was held on November 9, 2021. The 60-day comment period ended on December 20, 2021. NMED took final action that on February 11, 2022.

Shipments Update (Calendar Year) - Total containers emplaced is 535 this year and the total shipments are 22. Shipments to WIPP so far this year are 11 from Idaho National Laboratory and 11 form LANL.

1 2 XII. **Public Comment Period** 3 Ms. Atcitty opened the floor for public comment at 3:07 p.m. 4 Mr. Scott Kovac, Nuclear Watch New Mexico, thanked Ms. Gurulé for her work on the NNMCAB. He noted that he would like to request that members of the public be invited on 5 6 any tours of LANL. Below is written comment submitted by email from Mr. Kovac: 7 "Justice40 is a whole-of-government effort to ensure that Federal agencies work with states 8 and local communities to make good on President Biden's promise to deliver at least 40 9 percent of the overall benefits from Federal investments in climate and clean energy to 10 disadvantaged communities. Today, we are taking a key step toward achieving the 11 President's ambitious goal and issuing interim guidance that will help Federal agencies 12 deliver on the Justice 40 Initiative. 13 Do we know what percentage of the current benefits from Federal investments in climate 14 and clean energy currently go to disadvantaged communities around Los Alamos? WIPP - GAO report 15 16 DOE considers 17 shipments per week to WIPP to be full disposal capacity. They are doing 7 17 per week now. We are still dealing with the impacts of 2014 release. 18 The new WIPP ventilation to take 4 years and \$200 million dollars more than original 19 estimate. 20 The causes DOE identified were (1) its contractor's inexperience managing construction 21 projects and (2) an inability to incentivize staff to work in Carlsbad. The contractor's 22 inexperience had consequences that caused significant schedule delays and cost growth. For 23 example, according to the root cause analysis, the contractor did not properly evaluate 24 subcontractors and awarded a \$135 million construction subcontract to an entity that did 25 not have adequate qualifications to perform certain construction responsibilities for the 26 project. 27 DOE officials acknowledged that the risk register for WIPP lacks details. They explained that 28 DOE plans to update the risk register for WIPP in 2022. Without updating the risk register to 29 include specific risks related to construction and regulatory delays and plan for adequate 30 mitigation strategies, DOE may not have an achievable schedule, which may cause shipping 31 delays and cost increases for the generator sites. DOE may need to ask states for permission 32 to keep storing waste at generator sites, potentially violating legal agreements with the 33 states if DOE cannot obtain their consent for extending the storage and incurring higher 34 storage costs or running out of storage space. 35 I request that the CAB recommend to DOE that DOE provides extreme oversight so that WIPP avoids delays in shipping TRU from LANL in the future, especially since WIPP is due for 36 37 a new contractor." 38 With no further public comment Ms. Atcitty closed the comment period at 3:15 p.m.

39

XIII. Presentation 1 2 Mr. David Nickless, EM-LA, Mr. Troy Thomson, N3B, and Mr. Gerald O'Leary, N3B, presented 3 on, "EM-LA Project Prioritization Fiscal Year 2022" An electronic copy of the presentation may be obtained from the NNMCAB Staff (menice.santistevan@em.doe.gov or 4 5 bridget.maestas@em.doe.gov or by calling (505) 989-1662. 6 7 XIV. DDFO Follow-Up 8 Mr. Bishop stated that the following were his notes for the meeting: 9 The Committees need to go back and look at the Bylaws to allow a broader 10 membership. 11 Mr. Bishop will get with Headquarters on the GAO statement in the newspaper 12 article that came out. 13 Per Mr. Grogan's request, Mr. Bishop will get a waste type presentation (Mr. 14 Rodriguez to give that presentation). 15 Need feedback on the Chairs meeting in Paducah on attending virtually or in person. 16 Staff will get with the members on the snapshot as a progress report and get 17 suggestions on that. 18 April Committee Meeting will be a presentation on Radiological Terms and the Tour 19 of LANL EM Sites will be moved to June. 20 Mr. Bishop will get the percentage of EJ40 going out to disadvantaged communities 21 for EM work. It does exceed 40% right now when you consider working with the 22 Northern New Mexico College Worker Program. 23 Mr. Hull requested a radiological terms presentation – what do the terms mean with 24 regard to risk. 25 Mr. bishop will work with N3B to get a TA-21 (DP Road) Map and a Chromium Map 26 Staff will get a mobile microphone for the presenters. 27 **Wrap-up Discussion and Questions** 28 XV. 29 Ms. Atcitty asked Ms. Santistevan to talk about the next meeting and any other announcements she has for the NNMCAB. 30 31 Ms. Santistevan stated that the next meeting is a Combined Committee Meeting on April 20, 32 2022 from 1:00 to 4:00. She noted that this meeting would be virtual, and the presentation would be a primer on radiological terms and then the committees would discuss their Work 33 34 Plans. Ms. Santistevan stated that the dates for the Paducah meeting would be May 10th and 11th and to let her know if anyone was interested in attending. Ms. Santistevan stated that 35 36 the NNMCAB would be hosting the EM SSAB Chairs Meeting in Santa Fe the first week of 37 September at La Fonda on the Plaza.

Mr. Grogan inquired about the National Cleanup Workshop and would be interested in that

38

39

meeting.

Ms. Santistevan stated that she would send that information out. 1 2 Ms. Atcitty thanked all the members for attending the meeting. She thanked Ms. Gurulé for her service on the Board. She noted that the meeting was very informative and there were a 3 4 lot of good discussions. 5 6 XVI. **Adjournment** 7 Mr. Bishop thanked everyone for attending the meeting. 8 With no additional business to discuss, Mr. Bishop adjourned the meeting at 4:54 p.m. 9 Respectfully Submitted, Cherylin Otcillis 10 Ms. Cherylin Atcitty, Chair, NNMCAB 11 12 *Minutes prepared by Bridget Maestas, Executive Assistant, NNMCAB 13 14 **Attachments** 15 1. Final NNMCAB Meeting Agenda for 03/16/2022 2. Final NNMCAB Meeting Minutes for 01/19/2022 16 3. Presentation by Miquela Vargas, "EM-LA Efforts Within the Justice40 Initiative" 17 18 4. Presentation by David Nickless, Troy Thomson and Gerald O'Leary, "EM-LA Project Prioritization Fiscal Year 2022" 19 20 5. Handout, Cleanup Snapshot FY22 Quarter 1

- 21 **Public Notice:**
- 22 *All NNMCAB meetings are recorded. Audio files will be placed on file for review at the NNMCAB
- 23 office, 94 Cities of Gold Road, Santa Fe, New Mexico, 87506. The written minutes are intended as a
- 24 synopsis of the meeting.